
 

                                                                                                           

AGENDA 
 

ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT 
Special Meeting 

April 16, 2020 at 2:00 PM 
Via Conference Call 

 
 

Pursuant to the Island City Development Bylaws Section 5.13, any Board meeting may 
be held by telephone conference. Additionally, Executive Order Numbers N-29-20 and 
N-35-20 signed by Governor Gavin Newsom and guidance provided by legal counsel, a 
local legislative body, such as the Board of Commissioners, or state body is authorized 
to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to 
observe and to address the local legislative body.  All requirements in both the Bagley-
Keene Act and the Brown Act expressly or impliedly requiring the physical presence of 
members, the clerk or other personnel of the body, or the public as a condition of 
participation in or a quorum for a public meeting have been waived. 
 
Public access to this meeting is available as follows: 
 
Call In: 888-204-5987 
Pin Code: 887 6253 
 
There is no cost to participate in the call except your usual phone charges. For the 
public, if you choose to call in, please place your phone on mute to listen in.  
 
Persons wishing to address the Board of Directors are asked to submit comments for 
the public speaking portion of the agenda as follows: 
 
Send an email with your comment(s) to kmertz@alamedashsg.org and 
vcooper@alamedahsg.org prior to or during the Board of Directors meeting. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Non-Agenda) 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR (Action) 

a. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held 
March 23, 2020, Page 1 

b. Receive and File the December 31, 2019 Audited Financial Statements for 
the Following Limited Partnerships: Stargell Commons LP, Sherman and 
Buena Vista LP and Everett and Eagle L.P., Page 3 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

mailto:vcooper@alamedahsg.org


Agenda  April 16, 2020 
Island City Development  Page 2 of 2 
 

                                                                                                           

a. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Submission of Funding Applications for the 
North Housing Project Page 69 (Action) 

5. NON-AGENDA (Public Comment) 
6. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS – BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

NOTES:  

 If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Island City 
Development Board of Directors, please contact Stacey Wilson at (510) 747-
4307 (TTY/TRS: 711) or swilson@alamedahsg.org.  Notification 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the Island City Development Board of Directors to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying 
at the Office of the Housing Authority, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal 
business hours. 

 Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to 
serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. The Board of 
Directors exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are 
conducted before the people and are open for the people’s review. In order to 
assist Island City Development’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe 
allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may 
be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help Island City 
Development accommodate these individuals. 

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 

 Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by 
Board members may speak for a maximum of three (3) minutes per agenda item 
when the subject is before the Board. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Board 
President. Upon recognition by the President, approach the rostrum and state 
your name. 

 Lengthy testimony should be submitted in writing and only a summary of pertinent 
points presented verbally. 

 Applause and demonstrations are prohibited during Board meetings. 

mailto:swilson@alamedahsg.org


MINUTES 
Draft until approved 

ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT 
Special Meeting 

March 23, 2020 at 1:00 PM 
Conference Call 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

President Cooper called the meeting to order at 1:14 p.m. The following Board 
Members were present on the conference call: Director Vanessa Cooper, Director Brad 
Weinberg, and Director Janet Basta.  Staff in Attendance: Kathleen Mertz and Louie So. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Non-Agenda) (None)

3. CONSENT CALENDAR (Action)

a. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held
February 19, 2020

Director Weinberg moved to approve the minutes of the special meeting of the Board of 
Directors held February 19, 2020.  Director Basta seconded. Roll call was held. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

4. NEW BUSINESS

a. Accept the Rosefield Project Update Report and Approve A $500,000
Predevelopment Loan Amendment from the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda and Authorize the President or designee to Negotiate and Execute
the Loan Documents

Director Basta moved to accept the Rosefield project update report and approve a 
$500,000 predevelopment loan amendment from the Housing Authority of the City of 
Alameda and authorize the President or designee to negotiate and execute the loan 
documents.  Director Weinberg seconded. Roll call was held. Weinberg Yes. Basta Yes. 
Cooper Yes. The motion carried unanimously. 

b. Approve a Contract Amendment with the Dahlin Group, Inc. for Additional
Architectural Services at Rosefield Village

Director Weinberg moved to approve a contract amendment with the Dahlin Group, Inc. 
for additional architectural services at Rosefield Village.  Director Basta seconded. Roll 
call was held. Weinberg Yes. Basta Yes. Cooper Yes. The motion carried unanimously. 

c. Accept the North Housing project Update Report; Adopt Resolution
Authorizing Funding Applications; Approve Carmel Partners Demolition Bid;
Accept a $130,000 Loan Amendment from AHA; and Authorize the President
or designee to Negotiate and Execute the Loan Documents

1



ICD Board of Directors –Meeting Minutes  Page 2 
March 23, 2020 
 
Discussion about holding off on the Funding Applications Resolution so that it aligns 
with the approval from the Board of Commissioners. Staff was directed to work with 
legal counsel to amend the Resolution and bring it back for Board review.  
 
Director Weinberg moved to accept the North Housing project update report and 
approve Carmel Partners demolition bid and accept a $130,000 loan amendment from 
AHA and authorize the President or designee to negotiate and execute the loan 
documents.  Director Basta seconded. Roll call was held. Weinberg Yes. Basta Yes. 
Cooper Yes. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

d. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Accounts and Investment at the California 
Asset Management Program (CAMP) 

 
Director Weinberg moved to adopt a resolution authorizing accounts and investment at the 
California Asset Management Program.  Director Basta seconded. Roll call was held. 
Weinberg Yes. Basta Yes. Cooper Yes. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. NON-AGENDA (Public Comment) (none) 
 

6. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS (none) 
 

7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS – BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF  
 
Staff reported that the annual audits for the limited partnerships was almost complete 
and would be presented to the board in April. Director Weinberg asked if the tax returns 
are impacted by the Shelter in Place order. Louie So reported no because we are still 
waiting on the Form 8609 so an amendment will be required at that time. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:33 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Draft until approved 
Janet Basta 
Secretary 

2



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT ITEM 3B 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board of Directors 
Island City Development 

Candace Latigue 
Asset Manager 

April 16, 2020 

Receive and File the December 31, 2019 Audited Financial Statements for 
the Following Limited Partnerships: Stargell Commons LP, Sherman and 
Buena Vista LP and Everett and Eagle L.P. 

BACKGROUND 

Island City Development is the general partner for three separate limited partnerships. 
Each limited partnership is required to prepare an audited financial statement each fiscal 
year. This statement then is used to prepare the annual tax return. Both the audited 
financial statement and tax return are reviewed by the Finance Director and Asset 
Manager and approved by the limited partner for each limited partnership. The audited 
financials will be consolidated into the Island City Development 2019 audit, which comes 
to the Board for review and approval with the IRS Form 990. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Receive and File the December 31, 2019 audited financial statements for the Limited 
Partnerships listed below.   

• Stargell Commons, L.P.; unqualified
• Sherman and Buena Vista L.P.; unqualified
• Everett and Eagle L.P.; unqualified

Respectfully submitted, 

Candace Latigue 
Asset Manager 

Attachments: 
1. Stargell Commons LP Audited Financial Statement
2. Sherman and Buena Vista LP Audited Financial Statement
3. Everett and Eagle L.P. Audited Financial Statement

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT ITEM 4A 

                                                                                                           

 
To:  Board of Directors 

Island City Development 
 
From:  Danielle Thoe 

Management Analyst  
 
Date:  April 16, 2020 
 
Re: Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Submission of Funding Applications for the 

North Housing Project 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The North Housing Project is a redevelopment of 12 acres of the former Coast Guard 
Housing at the former Naval Air Station Alameda (NAS Alameda). The Housing Authority 
(AHA) and partners, Building Futures and Alameda Point Collaborative first submitted a 
Notice of Interest (NOI) for the property in March 2008, known as the homeless 
accommodation parcel, and therefore the property was conveyed to AHA on May 30, 
2019. Staff are undertaking predevelopment work for the redevelopment of the site as 
affordable housing through Island City Development. ICD’s role is to carry out real estate 
development activities on behalf of the Housing Authority. 
 
Detailed reports about project milestones are outlined in AHA Board of Commissioner’s 
monthly agendas beginning in September 2017. Additional project information can be 
found at www.northhousing.org.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff continue to move forward with various elements of the North Housing project, the 
scope of which includes: demolition of existing military housing structure, construction of 
internal infrastructure including streets, and development of up to 580 units of mixed-
income affordable housing.  
 
The multiple phases of this project will use a number of funding sources over the life of 
the project. Potential sources include, but are not limited to, Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits, Alameda County Homelessness funds, federal HOME and CDBG funds, AUSD 
Pass Through Funds, No Place Like Home, Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing 
Program funds, State of California Housing and Community Development Department 
Infill Infrastructure Grant, and EPA Brownfields Grant. In anticipation of multiple funding 
applications, staff have prepared an Authorizing Resolution for these potential funding 
applications rather than having to return to the Board for individual authorizations.  
 
Staff previously brought a similar resolution before the Board at its March 23, 2020 
meeting. At that time the Board requested that after applying for funding and prior to 

69

http://www.northhousing.org/


ICD Board of Directors  April 16, 2020 
  Page 2 of 2 
 

                                                                                                           

signing an agreement with a funder that staff return to the Board for approval of the 
funding agreement. Staff worked with legal counsel to update the attached resolution to 
include this step.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Successful funding applications will support the reduction of AHA funds used, via ICD, 
during the North Housing project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Submission of Funding Applications for the North Housing 
Project 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Danielle Thoe 
Management Analyst 
 
 
Attachment: Authorizing Resolution 
 

70



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

Resolution No. 2020-__ 
 

North Housing Funding Applications 
 

At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Island City 
Development, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“ICD”), held on March 18, 2020 
(the “Meeting”), the following resolutions were adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, the Corporation was formed as a public benefit corporation established to 
operate exclusively to support the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (“AHA”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority owns real property at the 501 Mosley Avenue 

commonly known as North Housing (the “Property”) for which the Corporation provides real 
estate development services to redevelop the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Corporation is authorized to do business in the State of California and is 
empowered to enter into an obligation to receive local, regional, state, and federal funds for the 
acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, or preservation of affordable multifamily rental housing, 
including but not limited to Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, Alameda County funds, HOME 
and CDBG funds, AUSD Pass Through Funds, No Place Like Home, State HCD Program funds, 
Tax-Exempt Bonds, and Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program funds, 
(collectively the “Funding”). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board authorizes staff to submit 
applications for Funding for the redevelopment of North Housing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, If the application is approved, staff shall return to the 

Board of Directors to seek formal approval to negotiate and execute related loan and regulatory 
documents related to the funding award; andthe Board is hereby authorized to incur an obligation 
for the Funding and to enter into, execute, and deliver, a loan agreement, and any and all other 
related documents including but not limited to, a promissory note, a deed of trust and security 
agreement, a regulatory agreement, a development agreement and certain other documents that 
may be required by the lender as security for, evidence of or pertaining to the loan, and all 
amendments thereto (collectively, the “Loan Documents”). 
 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED:  the Board hereby authorizes Vanessa Cooper, 

President,  or her written designee are each separate, individually, and independently hereby 
authorized to execute: an application for the Funding, and any amendment or modifications to 
such application for FundingBrad Weinberg, Vice President, and Janet Basta, 
Secretary/Treasurer (each, an “Officer”), or their designee, are acting alone on behalf of ICD are 
hereby authorized to execute applications for the Funding, the Loan Documents, and any 
amendment or modifications thereto. 
 
 

71



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

****** 
ATTEST: 
 
              
Vanessa M. Cooper     Janet Basta 
President      Secretary 
 
Adopted: 
 
 
     
Date 

72


	3-A - DRAFT - ICD Board of Directors Minutes - March 23, 2020
	ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT

	3-B - Receive and File the December 31, 2019 Audited Financial Statements with audit attachments
	3-B - Receive and File the December 31, 2019 Audited Financial Statements
	Unlocked - 3-B ATTACHMENT Audit 2019 Stargell
	Unlocked - 3-B ATTACHMENT Audit 2019 Sherman and Buena Vista
	Unlocked - 3-B ATTACHMENT Audit 2019 Everett and Eagle

	4-A - Authorize NH Funding Applications



